

## THE HIGHLAND GEOLOGICAL SOCIETY

Scottish Charity No. SC004427

## MINUTES of the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING held at Millburn Academy, Inverness, on Wednesday 22<sup>nd</sup> February 2017

CHAIRPERSON Alan Thompson took the chair at 19:30 and welcomed all those present.

- 1. APOLOGIES were received from John Adamson, Eddie Lynch, Bill Peppé and Ann and Peter Reynolds.
- 2. THE MINUTES of the AGM held on Wednesday 17<sup>th</sup> February 2016 had been distributed to members prior to the meeting. The acceptance of the Minutes was proposed by Stephen Young and seconded by Andy Leggatt; these were duly signed as correct. There were no matters arising.
- 3. ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 2016
  In a further effort to streamline the information submitted to OSCR, the reports from the Chair and the Treasurer have been brought together in a single document. The new Annual Report was distributed to members ahead of the meeting and the Chairperson reminded those present of the society's charitable purposes as given in the report. The accompanying summary of fieldtrips and lectures demonstrates how the society met its responsibilities in 2016. The Chair emphasised that the success of the society relies on the hard work of the members, especially the committee, and, in particular the Secretary who was thanked for her efforts on the society's behalf.

The Chairperson then moved to the financial part of the report, pointing out that the society remained in good financial health. The report is presented as Income versus Expenditure, with most of the income coming from membership subscriptions and associated Gift Aid payments. It was noted that the income given doesn't necessarily exactly reflect the number of members as cash payments may be received in different financial years to that being reported. It was apparent that, unsurprisingly, the biggest expenditure was expenses for leaders (and speakers); efforts are made to try and ensure a balance between local and out-of-area lecturers but this will vary from year to year. The cost of insurance is a significant, but necessary, expense.

Given the society's secure financial position, no change in membership fees was proposed.

The Annual Report had been reviewed and signed off by the committee; no objections were received from members and the Chair will submit this document to OSCR in due course.

## 4. ELECTION OF OFFICE BEARERS

The Chair stated that two resignations from the committee had been received (John Adamson; Rhona Fraser) and that he intended to step down as Chair after three years in office. He also thanked Rhona for her work as Treasurer for the last two years.

Alan Thompson proposed that Stephen Young be elected as Chair in his stead and this was seconded by Anne Cockroft. Stephen asked the group to note that he probably knew less about geology than more or less everyone else in the room but, given the nature of the role, this was not felt to be an issue and Stephen duly accepted the position. It was agreed that Alan Thompson would continue to chair the meeting.

David Jarman proposed that Alison Wright continue as Hon. Secretary and this was seconded by Stephen Young.

Andy Leggatt proposed that Alan Thompson be elected as Hon. Treasurer and this was seconded by Jonie Guest.

Peter Christie proposed that Andy Leggatt be re-elected as Website Manager and this was seconded by Rhona Fraser.

It was proposed by Alan Thompson that the remainder of the extant committee be elected *en bloc* and this was seconded by Alison Wright; Anne Cockroft, Eddie Lynch and Ann Reynolds thus continue to serve as committee members.

Two additional members were elected to the committee: David Jarman (proposed by Alan Thompson; seconded by Rhona Fraser) and Dave Longstaff (proposed by Alison Wright; seconded by Andy Leggatt) meaning that the committee remains at nine.

## 5. AOCB

- (i) The Committee had recently drawn up a guideline summarising the charges made to members and guests at lectures and field trips. This reflected current practice and there was no strong pressure for any change. However, the Committee had decided that visiting guests will now pay £5 at lectures to further differentiate the charge between members and non-members.
- (ii) Anne Cockroft noted that the Book Auction had gone very well with the majority of books having found a new home. Those books remaining were available for members to peruse after the meeting and a small donation welcomed if anyone wished to take a book with them.
- (iii) The Secretary drew the members' attention to Professor Iain Stewart's forthcoming talk in April, noting that the meeting would take place in the Main Assembly Hall at Millburn Academy. As this will be an open event, numbers need to be monitored to ensure that adequate insurance is in place and that the capacity of the hall is not exceeded. Members were asked to book a place by email, thus ensuring that they had a virtual ticket number. Details of the event will be circulated to other interested groups and societies so a good attendance is anticipated.

- (iv) Peter Christie asked that John Adamson be thanked for dedicating so much of his time to supporting the society, not least as a long serving committee member. Alan Thompson agreed to pass this message on to John.
- (v) Stephen Young requested that thanks also go to Alan Thompson for his guidance, skill and diplomacy during his chairmanship of the society.
- (vi) Jonie Guest stated that Scotland's Rock Art project (ScRAP) was now underway. This is a 5-year project, led by Dr Tertia Barnett from Historic Environment Scotland, in partnership with Edinburgh University, Glasgow School of Art Digital Design Studio, Archaeology Scotland, Kilmartin Museum, and the North of Scotland Archaeological Society (NOSAS). The project aims to record Scottish rock art in a consistent and useful way and NOSAS will undertake the pilot field work before the project is rolled out across Scotland. Jonie noted that there are 150 known sites in Ross-shire and that most of the carvings are in mica schist. Whilst delivery of the project is still some months away, she hoped that there would be some involvement with the HGS; Alan Thompson as NOSAS liaison committee member for the project will also work with the HGS committee where appropriate.
- (vii) Dave Longstaff suggested that the society reintroduce a members' night to the programme, and this was widely supported. The Secretary said that in previous years a lack of expert knowledge had made this difficult but agreed that an event could be added to the programme; a 'Fieldtrip review' after the 2018 AGM is planned and this could be broadened in scope.
- (viii) Andy Moffat informed the group that he had recently attended the NW Highlands Geopark AGM. The meeting was well-supported and the local MSP was also in attendance. The Geopark team have achieved a great deal with very limited funding and need community backing to secure money for future projects. Andy suggested that the society should look to become a 'friend' of the Geopark and the committee agreed to investigate this further.
- (ix) Peter Christie stated that the Lochaber Geopark also needed support, especially as lack of funding meant that they had lost their UNESCO status, so the society needs to be more proactive in offering support. The Secretary said that information received from the Geoparks is passed on to members via the newsletter wherever possible.

There being no other business, the meeting was closed at 8.05 pm.

The floor was then given to Alison Wright for what proved to be an excellent short talk about research undertaken as an undergraduate at the University of Aberdeen in support of the hunt for life on Mars.